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239; Doc. 239-1.) 

Upon the joint motion of the FTC and Settling Defendant, the Court makes the 

following findings and enters judgment in this action as set forth below. 

I. STIPULATED FACTS 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter. 

2. The Complaint charges that Whitney participated in deceptive acts or 

practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

3. On or about June 5, 2018, the Court entered a temporary restraining order 

appointing Mark J. Bernet, Esq. as a temporary receiver of the Receivership 

Entities with full powers of an equity receiver (“ Receiver”). 

4. 
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this action, Settling Defendant admits the facts necessary to establish 

jurisdiction. 

7. Settling Defendant waives any claim that she may have under the Equal 

Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. § 2412, concerning the prosecution of this 

action through the date of this Order, and agrees to bear her own costs and 

attorneys fees. 

8. Settling Defendant and the FTC waive all rights to appeal or otherwise 

challenge or contest the validity of this Order. 

II. ORDER 

It is ORDERED AND ADJUDGED as follows: 

1. Immediately upon entry of this Order, Settling Defendant is ORDERED to 

surrender to the FTC all control, title, dominion, and interest she has to the 

following assets: 

a. All funds in any accounts in the name of the corporate Defendants. 

b. All funds in any accounts in the name of all other Receivership 

Entities; 

c. All cash or funds transferred to and held by the Receiver, including 

approximately $406,262 repatriated fromCosta Rica by Whitney and 

transferred to the receiver on or around July 30, 2018, and 

approximately $208,068 transferred by Edward Jones to the Receiver 

on or about September 4, 2018; 
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d. All funds in the JPMorgan Chase Bank accounts xxxxxx2099, 

xxxxxx9775, xxxxx8359, xxxxx2188, and xxxxx7977, held in the name 

of Shark Speaker LLC, Wealth Building Technologies (formerly 

known as Expert Media Agency) and Expert Sales Agency, totaling 

approximately $438,377, that were transferred to the Receiver on or 

about June 25, 2018; 

e. All reserve funds or any other accounts held, controlled, or serviced 

by Esquire Bank, N.A. and/or Maverick Bankcard, Inc. and 

associated with any payments processed by, or on behalf of Whitney, 

Settling Defendant, or Wealth Building Technologies (formerly 

known as Expert Media Agency, LLC d/b/a YGP Events), including 

the merchant settlement account or merchant reserve account with 

the MID ending in 0059 (approximately $102,880 as of Maverick 

Bankcard Inc.’s receipt of the Court’s temporary restraining order). 

2. Within seven (7) days upon entry of this Order, Settling Defendant is 

ORDERED to assign, transfer, or convey to the Receiver any claim, interest, 

or right to payment she has to the $45,000 loan made by Whitney and Shark 
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in c ludin g promptly sign in g a n y doc umen t nec essa r y to tra n sfer suc h fun ds 

held by th ese person s or en tit ies to the Commission. Upon the tra n sfer of 

all fun ds in th e a bove a c coun t s to the Rec eiver, the Sett lin g Defen da n t’s 

obliga t ion s w ith rega r d to this para gr aph sh a ll be deemed complet ed. 

8. Settlin g Defen da n t relinquish es domin ion a n d a ll lega l a n d equit a ble righ t, 

title, and in ter est in a ll a sset s tra n sfer r ed pursua n t to this Order a n d ma y 

not seek th e retur n of an y a sset s. 

9. Upon the Sett lin g Defen da n t’s complet ion of her performa n c e of 

obliga t ion s required un der para gr aphs 1, 2, and 7, the FTC sha ll w ith in 

seven (7) da ys of suc h time w ith dr a w its sta t emen t of cla im in th e Proba t e 

Action . 

10. The fa c t s a lleged in th e Compla in t w ill be ta ken a s true, without furt h er 

proof, in an y subsequen t civil litiga t ion by or on beh a lf of th e FTC, 

inc ludin g in a proc eedin g to enforc e its righ t s to any paymen t or monet a r y 

j udgmen t pu rsua n t to this Order, suc h a s a nondisc h a r gea bilit y compla in t 

in a n y ba n kr uptc y ca se. 

11. The fa c t s a lleged in th e Compla in t esta blish a ll elemen t s nec essa r y to 

sust a in a n a c tion by th e Commission pursua n t to Sec tion 523(a)(2)(A) of the 

Ba n kr uptc y Code, 11 U.S .C. § 523(a)(2)(A), and th is Order w ill ha ve 

colla t er a l estoppel effec t for suc h purposes. 

12. 
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Number (Social Security Number), which Whitney previously submitted to 

the FTC, may be used for collecting and reporting on any delinquent 

amount arising out of this Order, in accordance with 31 U.S.C. § 7701. 

13. All money paid to the Commission pursuant to this Order may be 

deposited into a fund administered by the Commission or its designees to 

be used for equitable relief, including consumer redress and any attendant 

expenses for the administration of any redress fund. If a representative of 

the Commission decides that direct redress to consumers is wholly or 

partially impracticable or money remains 






